
 
  

CITY OF LAWNDALE 
14717 Burin Avenue, Lawndale, California 90260 

Phone (310) 973-3200 – www.lawndalecity.org 
 

AGENDA 
LAWNDALE CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING 

Monday, June 15, 2020 - 6:30 p.m. 
Lawndale City Hall Council Chamber 

14717 Burin Avenue 
 

* COVID-19 NOTICE * 
Consistent with Executive Orders Nos. N-25-20, N-29-20, and N-63-20 from the Executive 
Department of the State of California and the Los Angeles County Health Official’s “Safer at 
Home” Order, this City Council meeting will not be physically open to the public as City 
Councilmembers will be teleconferencing into the meeting via Webex Communications. 
 
How to observe the Meeting:  
To maximize public safety while still maintaining transparency and public access, members of the public 
can observe the meeting on YouTube “Lawndale CityTV”, the City Website, or Lawndale Community 
Cable Television on Spectrum & Frontier Channel 3. 
 
How to submit Public Comment:  
Members of the public may provide public comment by sending comments to the Clerk by email at 
cityclerk@lawndalecity.org.  Please submit your written comments as early as possible, preferably prior 
to the start of the meeting or if you are unable to email, please call the City Clerk's Office at (310) 973-
3213 by 5:30 p.m. on the date of the meeting. Email comments must identify the Agenda Item Number 
in the subject line of the email.  The public comment period will close once the public comment time for 
the agenda item has concluded. The comments will be entered into the record and provided to the 
Council. All comments should be a maximum of 500 words, which corresponds to approximately 3 
minutes of speaking time.  Please see the Temporary eComment Policy for Public Meetings. 
 
Copies of this Agenda packet may be obtained prior to the meeting outside of the Lawndale City Hall foyer 
or on the City Website.  Interested parties may contact the City Clerk Department at (310) 973-3213 for 
clarification regarding individual agenda items. 
 

This Agenda is subject to revision up to 72 hours before the meeting. 
 

A. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
 

B. CEREMONIALS (Flag Salute) 
 

C. PUBLIC SAFETY REPORT 
 
D. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS - ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA (Public Comments) 

 
E. COMMENTS FROM COUNCIL 
  

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCfzabQru02YprD2xs5FC2Ow
http://192.168.10.14/CablecastPublicSite/watch/1?channel=3
mailto:cityclerk@lawndalecity.org
http://www.lawndalecity.org/ASSETS/PDF/Corona/City%20of%20Lawndale%20-%20eComment%20Policy.pdf
http://www.lawndalecity.org/HTML/DEPTHTML/CCLERK/CCAgendasMinutes.htm


Agenda 
City Council Regular Meeting 
June 15, 2020 
Page 2 

F. CONSENT CALENDAR

Items 1 through 11, will be considered and acted upon under one motion unless a City Councilmember 
removes individual items for further City Council consideration or explanation.

1. Motion to read by title only and waive further reading of all ordinances listed on the 
Agenda
Recommendation: that the City Council approve.

2. Amending Section 1.04.030 of the Lawndale Municipal Code to add the definition of 
“Responsible Party”
Recommendation: that the City Council approve the second reading and adopt Ordinance 
No. 1172-20 to amend Section 1.04.030 to add the definition of “Responsible Party” to 
the Lawndale Municipal Code.

3. First Amendment to the Contract Service Agreement with Telecom Law Firm 
Recommendation: that the City Council approve the First Amendment to the Agreement 
with Telecom Law Film PC for an additional fee not-to-exceed $24,500 increasing the 
total contract sum to $49,000 and extend the agreement term to June 30, 2021.

4. Final Parcel Map 82571
Recommendation: that the City Council approve the final Parcel Map 82571 for the 
subdivision of property located at 4347 171st St. Lawndale, California.

5. Appropriations Limit for the Fiscal Year 2020-2021
Recommendation: that the City Council adopt Resolution No. CC-2006-034 approving 
the Appropriation Limit for Fiscal Year 2020-21.

6. Annual Investment Policy
Recommendation: that the City Council adopt Resolution CC-2007-036, reaffirming City 
Council Policy Number 80-04 pertaining to the City's Investment Policy, without 
significant revisions.

7. Third Amendment to the Information Technology Services Agreement 
Recommendation: that the City Council (a) approve the Third Amendment to the Contract 
Services Agreement for Information Technology Services with Bericom Design, 
extending services for a one year term, July 1, 2020 through June 30, 2021, for an hourly 
rate of $87.73 up to 1,628 hours annually for an amount not to exceed $142,824 annually; 
and (b) to solicit proposals for service during Fiscal Year 2020-2021.

8. Accounts Payable Register
Recommendation: that the City Council adopts Resolution No. CC-2006-030, authorizing 
the payment of certain claims and demands in the amount of $98,335.77.

9. Minutes of the Lawndale City Council Regular Meeting – June 1, 2020 
Recommendation: that the City Council approve.

10. Minutes of the Lawndale City Council Special Meeting – June 1, 2020 



Agenda 
City Council Regular Meeting 
June 15, 2020 
Page 3 
 
 

 

  Recommendation: that the City Council approve. 
 

11. Minutes of the Lawndale City Council Special Meeting – June 3, 2020 
  Recommendation: that the City Council approve. 

 
G. ADMINISTRATION 
 

12. Annual 2019 General Plan and Housing Report 
Recommendation: that the City Council (a) review the 2019 draft Annual Report; (b) 
make any revisions and adopt Resolution No. CC-2006-035; and (c) direct staff to 
forward the report to the State Department of Housing and Community Development and 
the Governor’s Office of Planning and Research.  

 
13. November 3, 2020 General Municipal Election – Calling for the Election, Requesting  

County Consolidation and Services, and Adopting Regulations for Candidates 
Statements 
Recommendation: that the City Council (a) adopt Resolution No. CC-2006-031, calling 
for the November 3, 2020 General Municipal Election, calling for a Special Election to 
be held should there be a tie vote, and designating the Assistant City Clerk as the Election 
Official; (b) adopt Resolution No. CC-2006-032, requesting County Services; and (c) 
adopt Resolution No. CC-2006-033, adopting candidate statement regulations. 

 
14. Update on the Use of the Best Western Hotel and Baymont Inn as Temporary  

Homeless Shelters through “Project Roomkey” 
Recommendation: that the City Council receive and file this report, and provide direction 
to staff as appropriate. 
 

15. Consideration of Further Modifications to City Operations Due to the COVID-19  
Pandemic 
Recommendation: that the City Council postpone the July 18, 2020 Inaugural Lawndale 
Music Festival and reschedule the event for Sunday, September 13, 2020 following the 
8th Annual Blues Festival on Saturday, September 12, 2020 at Jane Addams Park. 

 
H. CITY MANAGER'S REPORT  

 
I. ITEMS FROM CITY COUNCILMEMBERS 
 

16. Mayor/City Councilmembers Report of Attendance at Meetings and/or Events 
 

J. CLOSED SESSION 
 
17. Conference with Legal Counsel – Anticipated Litigation 

The City Council will conduct a closed session, pursuant to Government Code section 
54956.9(d)(4), because the City is considering whether to initiate litigation in one case 
against Best Western Plus South Bay Hotel, Baymont Inn, and the County of Los 
Angeles. 

  



Agenda 
City Council Regular Meeting 
June 15, 2020 
Page 4 
 
 

 

18. Public Employee Performance Evaluation 
The City Council will hold a closed session, pursuant to Government Code section 
54957(b), to conduct an employee evaluation concerning the City Manager. 
 

K. ADJOURNMENT 
 
The next regularly scheduled meeting of the City Council will be held at 6:30 p.m. on Monday, 
July 6, 2020 in the Lawndale City Hall council chamber, 14717 Burin Avenue, Lawndale, 
California. 

 
It is the intention of the City of Lawndale to comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) in 
all respects.  If, as an attendee or a participant at this meeting, you will need special assistance beyond 
what is normally provided, we will attempt to accommodate you in every reasonable manner.  Please 
contact the City Clerk Department (310) 973-3213 prior to the meeting to inform us of your particular 
needs and to determine if accommodation is feasible.  Please advise us at that time if you will need 
accommodations to attend or participate in meetings on a regular basis. 
 

I hereby certify under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the Agenda 
for the regular meeting of the City Council to be held on June 15, 2020 was posted not less than 
72 hours prior to the meeting. 

 
 
       _________________________________ 
       Matthew Ceballos, Assistant City Clerk 



1



2







SECTION 3. The City Clerk shall certify to the passage and adoption of this ordinance, 
and shall make a minute of the passage and adoption thereof in the records of and the proceedings 
of the City Council at which the same is passed and adopted. This ordinance shall be in full force 
and effect thirty (30) days after its final passage and adoption, and within fifteen (15) days after 
its final passage, the City Clerk shall cause it to be posted and published in a newspaper of general 
circulation in the manner required by law. 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 15th day of June, 2020. 

ATTEST: 

State of California 
County of Los Angeles 
City of Lawndale 

) 

) 

) 

Robert Pullen-Miles, Mayor 

ss 

I, Rhonda Hofmann Gorman, City Clerk of the City of Lawndale, California, do hereby certify 
that the City Council duly introduced the foregoing Ordinance No. 1172-20 at its regular meeting 
held on the 1st day of June, 2020, and duly approved and adopted said ordinance at its regular 
meeting held on the 15th day of June, 2020, by the following roll call vote: 

Name 

Robert Pullen-Miles, Mayor 
Bernadette Suarez, Mayor Pro Tern 
James H. Osborne 
Pat Kearny 
Daniel Reid 

Rhonda Hofmann Gorman, City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Tiffany J. Israel, City Attorney 

Ordinance No. 1172-20 
Amending LMC 1.04.030 
Defining Responsible Party 

Voting Present, Not Voting 
Absent 

Aye No Abstain Not Participating 

Date 

2 



3









4









DATE:

TO:

FROM:

PREPARED BY:

SUBJECT:

BACKGROUND'

CITY OF LAWNDALE 

14 717 BURIN A VENUE, LAWNDALE, CALIFORNIA 90260 
PHONE (310) 973-3200, FAX (310) 644-4556 

www.lawndalecity.org 

June 15, 2020

Honorable Mayor and City Council

Kevin M. Chun, City Manager

Marla L. Pendleton, CPA, Director ofFinance/City Treasure�:/� (/IA

Adoption of Fiscal Year 2020-21 Appropriations limit //
/' 

The 
California, 

Gann Initiative 
mandated 

or 
an 
Proposition 

appropriations 
4, referred 

limit on 
to as 

various 
Article 

units 
XIII 

of 
B of the 

government, 
Constitution 

including 
of the 

the 
State 
City 

of
of

Lawndale. 
appropriations 

At 
limit. 

the beginning of each fiscal year the City must, by resolution, establish its

STAFF REVIEW

The 
provided 

limit 
by 
for 

the 
Fiscal 

California 
Year 2020-21 

Department 
has 

of 
been 

Finance. 
calculated 

The 
using 
adjustment 

the 
factors 

methodology 
used 

and 
by the City 

adjustment 
are the 

factors
per

capita personal income change and the population annual change.

The appropriations limit for Fiscal Year 2020-21 is $36,072,744. The City's budget appropriation 
subject to the limit is $15,965,688. The City is well under the limit. Approval of Resolution CC-2006-
034 will adopt the City's appropriations limit.

COMMISSION REVIEW

NIA 

LEGAL REVIEW

The City Attorney has reviewed Resolution CC-2006-034 and approved as to form.

FUNDING

NIA 

5



RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt Resolution CC-2006-034 approving the Appropriations 
Limit for Fiscal Year 2020-21. 

ATTACHMENTS: Resolution No. CC-2006-034, Exhibit A - Appropriations Limit Calculation 

2 



Resolution No. CC-2006-034 
FY 20-21 Appropriations Limit 

RESOLUTION NO. CC-2006-034 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF LAWNDALE, CALIFORNIA STATING THE APPROPRIATIONS LIMIT 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2021 
 
 
 WHEREAS, The Gann Initiative or Proposition 4, also known as Article XIIIB of the Constitution 
of the State of California, was passed by the people; and  
 
 WHEREAS, Article XIIIB mandates the calculation and adoption of an annual appropriations limit 
on various units of government, including the City of Lawndale by adjusting the prior year’s appropriation 
limit for changes in inflation and population; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City’s 2020-2021 limit has been calculated by the Finance Department of the City 
of Lawndale in compliance with all of the provisions of Article XIIIB and using guidelines provided by the 
League of California Cities; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Lawndale desires to formally adopt that appropriations 
limit for the City for fiscal year 2020-2021. 
 
 THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LAWNDALE, CALIFORNIA DOES HEREBY 
RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 SECTION 1. That, in accordance with Article XIIIB of the Constitution of the State of California, 
the appropriations limit for the City of Lawndale for Fiscal Year 2020-21 is declared to be $36,072,744, as 
described in Exhibit "A” attached hereto and incorporated herein, and the appropriations  subject to this 
annual limit for fiscal year 2020-2021 total $15,965,688.  
 
 PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 15th day of June, 2020. 
 
 
 
       _______________________________ 
       Robert Pullen-Miles, Mayor 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Resolution No. CC-2006-034 
FY 20-21 Appropriations Limit 

ATTEST: 

State of California ) 
County of Los Angeles ) SS 
City of Lawndale ) 

I, Rhonda Hofmann Gorman, City Clerk of the City of Lawndale, California, do hereby certify that the City 
Council of the City of Lawndale duly approved and adopted the foregoing Resolution No. CC-2006-034 at 
a regular meeting of said Council held on the 15th day of June, 2020, by the following roll call vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
Aye No Abstain Not Participating 

Robert Pullen-Miles, Mayor 
Bernadette Suarez, Mayor Pro Tem 
James H. Osborne 
Pat Kearney 
Daniel Reid 

_______________________________ 
Rhonda Hofmann Gorman, City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

______________________________ 
Tiffany J. Israel, City Attorney 





DATE: 

TO: 

FROM: 

PREPARED BY: 

SUBJECT: 

BACKGROUND 

CITY OF LAWNDALE 

14717 BURIN AVENUE, LAWNDALE, CALIFORNIA 90260 
PHONE (310) 973-3200, FAX (310) 644-4556 

www.lawndalecity.org 

June 15, 2020 

Honorable Mayor and City Council 

Kevin M. Chun, City Manag 

Marla L. Pendleton, CPA, Director of Finance/City Treasurer� 
Annual Investment Policy- Resolution CC-2006-036

Government Code (GC) Section 53607 allows the legislative body to delegate authority to invest or 
reinvest funds of the City to the City Treasurer for a one-year period subject to annual renewal. GC 
Section 53646 states that the City Treasurer may render a statement of investment policy to be 
considered at a public meeting. 

STAFF REVIEW 

The attached Resolution CC-2006-036, A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Lawndale, 
California, Reaffirming Council Policy Number 80-04 Pertaining to the City's Investment Policy, is 
presented for the City Council's review and consideration. The City Council Policy has been reviewed 
and only grammatical changes are recommended by staff. 

The Policy establishes investment authority jointly with the City Treasurer and the City Manager. It 
limits purchases to a five-year maturity, unless advance approval is obtained from City Council. The 
objective of investment decisions is to provide the highest yield possible, while safeguarding City cash 
assets and providing liquidity for operational needs. The Policy is conservative and follows guidelines 
set in the Government Code for allowable safe investment practices. 

COMMISSION REVIEW 

NIA 

LEGAL REVIEW 

The Resolution and Policy have been reviewed and approved as to form by the City Attorney. 

0I001.0001/561455.1 6



FUNDING 

NIA 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends the City Council adopt Resolution CC-2006-036, reaffirming City Council 
Policy Number 80-04 pertaining to the City's Investment Policy, without significant revisions. 

ATTACHMENTS: Resolution No. CC-2006-036 
Council Policy No. 80-04, Investment Policy, including Exhibits "A" and "B" 

01001.0001/561455.l 2 



  
 
Resolution No. CC-2006-036 
Affirming Council Policy No. 80-04 
Investment Policy 

1 

RESOLUTION NO. CC-2006-036 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL  
OF THE CITY OF LAWNDALE, CALIFORNIA 
REAFFIRMING COUNCIL POLICY NO. 80-04 

PERTAINING TO THE CITY'S INVESTMENT POLICY 
 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Lawndale ("City") has established a Council 
Policy Manual to set forth and identify policies of the City Council which may not otherwise be 
established in ordinances of the City, or which are restated to further amplify existing City policy; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, all policies included in the Council Policy Manual are adopted by resolution; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council wishes to annually reconsider its Investment Policy; and 
 
 WHEREAS, such policy will provide for the safety of City investments, and secondarily 
ensure liquidity and yield; and 
 
 WHEREAS, such policy will enforce strict investment guidelines with regards to 
investments, external portfolio managers and capital wherewithal of brokering firms; and 
 
 WHEREAS, after reviewing the existing policy, staff recommends that the City Council 
confirm that minor changes are needed to the Investment Policy. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LAWNDALE, 
CALIFORNIA, DOES HEREBY RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 SECTION 1. That the City Council approves the updated version of Policy No. 80-04, 
entitled " Investment Policy", as attached hereto as Exhibit "A", and incorporated herein by this 
reference, as if fully set forth and directs City staff to maintain said policy in the Council Policy 
Manual. 
 
 SECTION 2. This resolution shall take effect as of the date of its passage and adoption. 
 
 PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 6th day of July, 2020. 
 
 
 
       _______________________________ 
       Robert Pullen-Miles, Mayor 
 
  



  
 
Resolution No. CC-2006-036 
Affirming Council Policy No. 80-04 
Investment Policy 

2 

ATTEST: 
 
State of California  ) 
County of Los Angeles ) SS 
City of Lawndale  ) 
 
I, Rhonda Hofmann Gorman, City Clerk of the City of Lawndale, California, do hereby certify that 
the City Council of the City of Lawndale duly approved and adopted the foregoing Resolution No. 
CC-2006-036 at a regular meeting of said Council held on the 15th day of June, 2020, by the following 
roll call vote: 
 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
Aye No Abstain Not Participating 

Robert Pullen-Miles, Mayor       
Bernadette Suarez, Mayor Pro Tem       
Daniel Reid       
Pat Kearney       
James H. Osborne       

 
 
_______________________________ 
Rhonda Hofmann Gorman, City Clerk 
 
       APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
       ______________________________ 
       Tiffany J. Israel, City Attorney 
 



01001.0001/651439.2  
Resolution No. CC-2006-036 
Exhibit "A" 1 

COUNCIL POLICY 
 

SUBJECT: 
Investment Policy 

POLICY NO.:  80-04 DATE ADOPTED: 
a) 6/21/04 
b) 8/19/13 
c) 7/7/14 
d) 7/18/16 
e) 8/7/17 
f) 7/15/19 
g) 6/15/20 

AUTHORITY: 
a) Resolution No. CC-0406-055… 
b) Resolution No. CC-1308-036 
c) Resolution No. CC-1407-030 
d) Minute Action 
e) Resolution No. CC-1708-037 
f) Resolution No. CC-1907-035 
g) Resolution No CC-2006-036 

 
 
PURPOSE:  
 
The purpose of this statement is to comply with California Government Code (GC) Sections 
16481.2, 53600, et seq., including 53646 and to provide clear guidelines for the prudent investment 
of the City of Lawndale’s (“City”) pooled cash assets. 
 
OBJECTIVE: 
 
The City's cash management system is designed to accurately monitor and forecast expenditures 
and revenues, which enables the City to invest its funds to the fullest extent possible.  The City 
attempts to receive the highest yield obtainable with investments which meet the criteria 
established for safety and liquidity. 
 
POLICY: 
 
In compliance with GC Section 53600.3, the City manages its pooled cash assets under the Prudent 
Person Rule (Probate Code Section 16040, et seq., as defined on Exhibit "A".) This allows the City 
a number of investment options as long as the investment is deemed prudent, does not exceed five 
years to maturity (unless previously approved in advance of the investment by the City Council by 
resolution), and is allowable under current legislation (GC Section 53600, et seq.). 
 
Criteria for selecting investments and the order of priority are: 
 
1. Safety.  Safety of principal is the foremost objective of the City.  Each investment 

transaction shall seek to ensure that capital losses are avoided, whether from institution 
default, broker-dealer default or erosion of market value.  The City shall seek to preserve 
principal by mitigating the two types of risk - credit risk and market risk. 

 
A. Credit Risk: Credit risk, defined as the risk of loss due to failure of an issuer of a 

security, shall be mitigated by investing only in very safe institutions and by 
diversifying the funds so that the failure of any one issuer would not unduly harm 
the City's cash position.  Investments must be limited to securities backed by the 
full faith and credit of: (1) the federal government, (2) other governmental agencies, 



01001.0001/651439.2  
Resolution No. CC-2006-036 
Exhibit "A" 2 

or (3) agencies and institutions with collateral, including assets and insurance, 
assuring similar risk. 

 
B. Market Risk: The risk of market value fluctuations due to overall changes in the 

general level of interest rates shall be mitigated by limiting the weighted average 
maturity of the City's funds to no more than three years. 

 
2. Liquidity.  Liquidity is the second most important objective of the City.  This refers to the 

ability to "cash in" at any moment in time with a minimal chance of losing some portion 
of principal or accrued interest.  Liquidity is an important quality especially when the need 
for unexpected funds occurs. 

 
3. Yield.  The current rate of return on an investment generally expressed as a percentage of 

the securities current price.  The City desires to obtain the highest possible rate of return 
consistent with the foremost objectives of safety and liquidity. 

 
This policy will enhance the economic status of the City by (a) safeguarding the pooled cash assets 
of the City and (b) ensuring that the City receives the highest possible rate of return on its money 
commensurate with the priority of safety.  The basic premise underlying the City's investment 
philosophy is to ensure City cash assets are always safe and available when needed. 
 
INVESTMENT AUTHORITY 
 
The city treasurer and the city manager, acting jointly, are authorized to make investments on 
behalf of the City.  Such investments shall be limited to the following instruments authorized under 
GC Sections 53601, 53635, 53684 and 16429.1 and further described in Exhibit "B": 
 
1. Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) (state pool) demand deposits. 
 
2. Certificates of deposit (or time deposits) placed with commercial banks and/or savings and 

loan companies and/or savings banks that are members of the Federal Depository Insurance 
Corporation (FDIC), not to exceed two hundred fifty thousand dollars ($250,000) in any 
single account with the same institution to ensure security. 

 
3. Passbook savings account demand deposits, not to exceed two hundred fifty thousand 

dollars ($250,000) in any single account with the same institution. 
 
4. Bonds, notes or other evidence of indebtedness of any local agency within the state or a 

department, board, agency or authority of the local agency. 
 
5. Securities of the United States government or its agencies for which the full faith and credit 

of the United States is pledged for payment of principal and interest. 
 
The following investments may only be made with the prior approval of the City Council by 
resolution, which approval must be renewed each year at the time of filing the annual Statement 
of Investment Policy: 
 



01001.0001/651439.2  
Resolution No. CC-2006-036 
Exhibit "A" 3 

1. Los Angeles County Treasurer's Municipal Investment Pool not to exceed 5% of the total 
county pool. 

 
2. Money market mutual funds.  Fund must receive the highest ranking by not less than two 

nationally recognized rating agencies or retain an investment advisor registered with the 
Securities Exchange Commission (or exempt from registration), have assets in excess of 
$500,000,000, and at least five years’ experience investing in instruments authorized by 
GC Sections 53601 and 53635. 

 
3. Bankers' acceptances. 
 
4. Small Business Administration loans. 
 
5. Negotiable certificates of deposit. 
 
6. Mortgage backed securities (GNMA, FHLMC, etc.). 
 
7. Any investment of funds which, when aggregated with all other investments, will cause 

the investment in securities with a maturity greater than two years to exceed thirty percent 
(30%) of the total pooled City funds. 

 
The city treasurer and the city manager shall purchase investment securities directly from the issuer 
or in accordance with GC Section 53601.5. 
 
INVESTMENT OF DEBT PROCEEDS, LEASES, REVENUE BONDS OR SIMILAR 
TRANSACTIONS 
 
Proceeds of indebtedness, certificates of participation, revenue bonds, leases, or similar 
transactions held by a third party trustee pursuant to an agreement with the trustee shall be invested 
as described in the applicable authorizing document.   
 
INELIGIBLE INVESTMENTS 
 
Investments not described herein, including, but not limited to, common stocks, commercial paper, 
repurchase agreements, reverse repurchase agreements, futures, options and derivatives are 
prohibited from use as City investment vehicles.  The City also shall not make leveraged 
investments, investments made on margin or any other investment made possible through the use 
of funds borrowed exclusively for the purpose of financing investments. 
 
SAFEKEEPING OF INVESTMENT SECURITIES 
 
To protect against potential losses caused by the collapse of individual securities broker/dealers 
all securities owned by the City shall be held in third party safekeeping by the trust department of 
the City's bank or other designated third party trust, in the City's name and control, under the terms 
of a custody agreement executed by the trust institution and the City.  All securities will be received 
and delivered using standard delivery vs. payment (DVP) procedures to ensure the transfer of 
securities only happens after payment has been made. 
 



01001.0001/651439.2  
Resolution No. CC-2006-036 
Exhibit "A" 4 

TRANSFER OF INVESTMENT FUNDS 
 
The transferring of investment funds will be carried out by use of telephone or electronic wire 
transfers.  Each entity with which the City does business shall receive, in writing from the city 
treasurer, a listing which limits transfers of funds to pre-authorized bank accounts only.  The listing 
will also contain the names of the City staff authorized to request such transfers and will be 
updated, in writing, for all changes of authorized staff and bank accounts as necessary. 
 
INSTITUTIONAL CRITERIA 
 
The City shall transact business only with banks, savings and loans, direct issuers and registered 
investment securities dealers. 
 
The purchase by the City of any investment, other than those purchased directly from the issuer, 
shall be purchased directly from an institution licensed by the state as a broker/dealer, as defined 
in Section 25004 of the Corporations Code, who is a member of the National Association of 
Securities Dealers, or a member of a federally regulated securities exchange, a national or state 
chartered bank, a federal or savings association (as defined by Section 5102 of the Financial Code), 
or a brokerage firm designated as a primary government dealer or regional brokerage dealer by the 
Federal Reserve Bank. 
 
Savings and loan and banking institutions with which the City shall deposit or invest its funds shall 
be financially responsible and meet, at a minimum, the following criteria: 
 
1. The institution shall have been in business at least five (5) years. 
 
2. Assets shall be greater than fifty million dollars ($50,000,000). 
 
3. Net worth to asset ratio shall be 3.5 to 1 or greater. 
 
4. Subordinated debt shall not be considered part of net worth. 
 
5. Deposits in certificates of deposit cannot exceed thirty percent (30%) of total portfolio. 
 
6. Interest may be paid monthly, quarterly, semi-annually or annually and at maturity. 
 
7. The institution shall submit audited financial statements. 
 
REPORTING 
 
In accordance with GC Section 53646(b), the city treasurer shall render, at least quarterly, reports 
to the city manager and City Council showing: (a) type of investment, (b) institution, (c) date of 
maturity, (d) amount of deposit, (e) current market value, (f) rate of interest on each security, and 
(g) such other data as the City Council may, from time to time, specify. 
 
 
 
POLICY REVIEW 



01001.0001/651439.2  
Resolution No. CC-2006-036 
Exhibit "A" 5 

 
In accordance with GC Section 53646(a)(2), the city treasurer may annually render to the city 
manager and City Council a Statement of Investment Policy, which Council shall consider and 
adopt by resolution at a public meeting. 
 
To ensure consistency with any new relevant legislation and financial trends, the city treasurer 
shall periodically report to the city manager and City Council proposed changes in the law and 
amendments to this policy for review and approval. 
  



01001.0001/651439.2  
Resolution No. CC-2006-036 
Exhibit "A" 6 

EXHIBIT "A" 
 

PRUDENT PERSON RULE 
(California Probate Code) 

 
 
DIVISION 9, PART 4, CHAPTER 1, ARTICLE 2.   TRUSTEE'S STANDARD OF CARE 
 
16040.  Trustee's standard of care in administering trust. 
 
(a) The trustee shall administer the trust with reasonable care, skill, and caution under the 

circumstances then prevailing that a prudent person acting in a like capacity would use in 
the conduct of an enterprise of like character and with like aims to accomplish the purposes 
of the trust as determined from the trust instrument. 

 
(b) The settlor may expand or restrict the standard provided in subdivision (a) by express 

provisions in the trust instrument.  A trustee is not liable to a beneficiary for the trustee's 
good faith reliance on these express provisions. 

 
(c) This section does not apply to investment and management functions governed by the 

Uniform Prudent Investor Act, Article 2.5 (commencing with Section 16045). 
 
 
16041.  Standard of care not affected by compensation. 
 
A trustee's standard of care and performance in administering the trust is not affected by whether 
or not the trustee receives any compensation. 
 
 
16042.  Public guardian's deposit or investment of trust property. 
 
(a) Notwithstanding the requirements of this article, Article 2.5 (commencing with Section 

16045), and the terms of the trust, all trust funds that come within the custody of the public 
guardian who is appointed as trustee of the trust pursuant to Section 15660.5 may be 
deposited or invested in the same manner, and would be subject to the same terms and 
conditions, as a deposit or investment by the public administrator of funds in the estate of 
a decedent pursuant to Article 3 (commencing with Section 7640) of Chapter 4 of Part 1 
of Division 7. 

 
(b) Upon the deposit or investment of trust property pursuant to subdivision (a), the public 

guardian shall be deemed to have met the standard of care specified in this article and 
Article 2.5 (commencing with Section 16045) with respect to this trust property. 

 



01001.0001/651439.2  
Resolution No. CC-2006-036 
Exhibit "A" 7 

EXHIBIT "B" 
 

DESCRIPTION OF INVESTMENTS 
 
 
Surplus funds of local agencies may only be invested in certain eligible securities.  The City invests 
only in those allowable securities under GC Sections 53601, 53635, 53684 and 16429.1. 
 
LOCAL AGENCY-INVESTMENT FUND 
 
LAIF investments are highly liquid with deposits being wired to the City within twenty-four hours 
and interest compounded daily. 
 
LAIF is a special fund in the state treasury which local agencies may use to deposit funds for 
investment.  There is no minimum investment period and the minimum transaction is $5,000, in 
multiples of $1,000 above that, with a maximum of $65,000,000 for any agency.  All interest is 
distributed to those agencies participating on a proportionate share determined by the amounts 
deposited and the length of time of the deposit.  Interest is paid quarterly and deposited directly 
into the account on the 15th day of the month following the close of the quarter.  The State keeps 
an amount for the reasonable costs of administration, not to exceed five percent of the quarterly 
earnings of the fund. 
 
Interest rates are fairly high because of the pooling of the State surplus cash with the surplus cash 
deposited by local governments.  This creates a multibillion-dollar money pool and allows 
diversified investments.  In a high interest rate market, the City may produce higher yields than 
LAIF can, but in times of low interest rates, LAIF yields are generally higher. 
 
 
CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT 
 
Certificates of deposit (CDs) are saving certificates with a fixed maturity date and specified interest 
rate that are generally issued by commercial banks in any denomination aside from minimum 
investment requirements.  A CD restricts access to funds until the maturity date of the investment.  
If the money is withdrawn before the maturity date, there is a penalty for early withdrawal.  
Certificates of deposit typically range from three months to five years. 
 
Certificates of deposit are insured for up to $250,000 when made with members of the Federal 
Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC).  CDs made above this amount with any one institution 
should be collateralized at 110% by the institution with government securities or 150% with 
mortgage-backed securities.  The City will not purchase CDs in an amount exceeding $250,000 at 
any given institution. 
 
PASSBOOK SAVINGS ACCOUNTS 
 
Passbook savings accounts are demand deposits in major deposit and lending institutions that allow 
the investor to transfer money from checking to savings and earn short-term interest on odd 
amounts of money which are not available for longer investment. 
 



01001.0001/651439.2  
Resolution No. CC-2006-036 
Exhibit "A" 8 

Passbook savings accounts are open-ended (i.e., they have no fixed term) and funds may be 
withdrawn at any time with no penalties.  They are also insured up to $250,000 when made with 
members of the FDIC.  They are among the safest investments and earn very low rates of interest.  
Generally, because of the high degree of flexibility and the low yield, these investments are made 
with convenience as the objective rather than yield and are usually for small amounts. 
 
NOTES, BONDS AND LOANS OF LOCAL AGENCIES WITHIN THE STATE 
INCLUDING BOARDS AND AGENCIES OF A LOCAL AGENCY 
 
These investments are loans directly to the City's successor to the Lawndale Redevelopment 
Agency and allow for a secure guaranteed rate of return that will be repaid from the Successor 
Agency to the Lawndale Redevelopment Agency's tax increments (property taxes).  The Agency's 
Board (City Council) and City Council control the terms of any such loan arrangement. 
 
U. S. TREASURY SECURITIES 
 
U.S. Treasury securities are considered the safest of all investments and are also highly liquid. 
 
U.S. TREASURY BILLS are direct short-term debt obligations of the United States government.  
They have maturity dates of one year or less and are sold in denominations of $1,000.  They are 
issued and traded on a discount basis and the interest is computed on a 360-day basis.  They are 
highly liquid investment with low market risk. 
 
U.S. TREASURY NOTES are medium-term debt obligations of the United States government 
with fixed interest rates paid semiannually until maturity.  Notes mature between one and 10 years 
(typical maturities are 2, 3, 5, 7 and 10 years). They are sold in multiples of $100 with the minimum 
price of $100.  Although Treasury notes have low credit risk, they are affected by interest-rate and 
inflation risk which makes them volatile in a changing interest rate environment. 
 
U.S. TREASURY BONDS are marketable, fixed-interest United States government debt security 
with a maturity of more than 10 years (typical maturities are 15, 20 or 30 years) and interest paid 
semiannually.  These long-term bonds are highly volatile in a changing interest rate environment 
and are not considered low market risk investments. 
 
FEDERAL AGENCY SECURITIES 
 
Federal agency securities are highly liquid and considered credit risk free.  They are guaranteed 
directly or indirectly by the United States government.  All agency obligations qualify as legal 
investments and are acceptable as security for public deposits.  They usually provide higher yields 
than regular treasury issues with all of the same advantages.  Examples are: 
 
FNMA's (Federal National Mortgage Association) are used to assist the home mortgage market by 
purchasing mortgages insured by the Federal Housing Administration and the Farmers Home 
Administration, as well as those guaranteed by the Veterans Administration. 
 
FHLB's (Federal Home Loan Bank) notes and bonds are issued by the Federal Home Loan Bank 
System to help finance the housing industry.  The notes and bonds provide liquidity and home 



01001.0001/651439.2  
Resolution No. CC-2006-036 
Exhibit "A" 9 

mortgage credit to savings and loan associations, mutual savings banks, cooperative banks, 
insurance companies and mortgage lending institutions. 
 
Other federal agency issues include Federal Intermediate Credit Bank Debentures (FICB), Federal 
Farm Credit Bank (FFCB), Federal Land Bank Bonds (FLB), Small Business Administration notes 
(SBA's), Government National Mortgage Association notes (GNMA's), Tennessee Valley 
Authority notes (TVA's), and Student Loan Association notes (SALLIE MAE's). 
 
While these investments are virtually credit risk free, they must be held to maturity to receive the 
guaranteed principal and interest.  They are subject to the same market risks as similar non-
government securities and not ordinarily invested in by the City. 
 
LOS ANGELES COUNTY POOLED SURPLUS INVESTMENTS 
 
The Los Angeles County Pooled Surplus Investments is similar to the California LAIF.  The 
county fund provides protection, liquidity and higher than market rates for short-term securities. 
 
Los Angeles County manages a multi-billion dollar portfolio serving local agencies, including 
school districts, community college districts, special districts and cities.  This pooled fund is 
managed by the County Treasurer and interest is competitive to money market rates.  There are no 
restrictions to the number of transactions or dollar amount of deposits.  The funds deposited by a 
local agency in the county pooled fund cannot be impounded or seized by any county official or 
agency while the funds are so deposited. 
 
All interest, less costs to administer the fund, is distributed to those agencies participating on a 
proportionate share determined by the amounts deposited and the length of time of deposit.  Interest 
is posted quarterly to the pool.   
 
MUTUAL FUNDS 
 
Money market mutual funds are another authorized investment allowing the City to maintain 
liquidity, receive competitive money market rates and remain diversified in pooled investments. 
 
Mutual funds are referred to in GC Section 53601.6 as "shares of beneficial interests issued by 
diversified management companies registered under the Investment Company Act of 1940".  The 
mutual fund must be restricted by its by-laws to the same investments allowed to the local agency.  
These investments are treasury issues, agency issues, banker's acceptances, commercial paper, 
certificates of deposit and negotiable certificates of deposit.  The quality rating and percentage 
restrictions in each investment category applicable to the local agency also applies to the mutual 
fund. 
 
The purchase price of shares of the mutual fund shall not include any sales commission.  
Investments in mutual funds and money market mutual funds cannot exceed twenty percent of the 
City’s surplus money. 
 
BANKERS' ACCEPTANCES 
 



01001.0001/651439.2  
Resolution No. CC-2006-036 
Exhibit "A" 10 

Banker's acceptances are frequently the highest in yield among short-term investments, are 
relatively safe and are highly liquid. 
 
Bankers' acceptances are short-term credit arrangements that facilitates international trade 
transactions between two parties when they do not have an established credit relationship.  It is a 
time draft drawn on a bank by an importer to finance purchases.  By its acceptance, the bank 
becomes primarily liable for the payment of the draft at its maturity.  Acceptances are purchased 
in various denominations ranging from 30 to 180 days.  The interest is calculated on a 360-day 
discount basis similar to treasury bills.  The City may invest up to forty percent of surplus money 
in bankers’ acceptances with up to thirty percent invested in any one commercial bank (GC Section 
53601(g)). 
 
NEGOTIABLE CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT 
 
Negotiable certificates of deposit (NCDs) are high-grade negotiable instruments, paying a higher 
interest rate than regular certificates of deposit.   They are liquid because they can be traded in the 
secondary market.  However, they cannot be cashed in before maturity. 
 
Negotiable certificates of deposit are unsecured obligations of the financial institution, bank or 
savings and loan, generally bought at par value with a promise to pay face value plus accrued 
interest at maturity or the instrument is purchased at a discount to its face value.  Minimum face 
value is $100,000 with maturities ranging from two weeks to one year.  The City does not usually 
invest in NCDs. 
 



7











8















MINUTES OF THE  
LAWNDALE CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING 

June 1, 2020  

A. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL

Mayor Pullen-Miles called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. in the City Hall council chamber,
14717 Burin Avenue, Lawndale, California.

Councilmembers Present:  Mayor Robert Pullen-Miles, Mayor Pro Tem Bernadette Suarez,
Councilmember James H. Osborne, Councilmember Pat Kearney, 
Councilmember Daniel Reid  

Other Participants: City Clerk Rhonda Hofmann Gorman, City Manager Kevin M. 
Chun, City Attorney Tiffany J. Israel, Los Angeles County 
Sheriff's Department Captain Duane Allen, Community Services 
Director Mike Estes, Assistant to the City Manager/Human 
Resources Director Raylette Felton, Municipal Services Director 
Michael Reyes, Finance Director Marla Pendleton, Community 
Development Director Sean Moore, Assistant City Clerk Matthew 
Ceballos 

B. CEREMONIALS

Mayor Pro Tem Bernadette Suarez led the flag salute.

C. PUBLIC SAFETY REPORT

Captain Allen summarized recent law enforcement activities.

D. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS - ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA

• Randall Abram, Resident, spoke about his concerns regarding fireworks in Lawndale.

• Pam London, Resident, spoke in opposition about fireworks in Lawndale.

E. COMMENTS FROM COUNCIL

The City Council responded generally to the comments, but did not request placement of any issues
on a future meeting agenda.

F. CONSENT CALENDAR

1. Motion to read by title only and waive further reading of all ordinances listed on the
Agenda
Recommendation: that the City Council approve.

2. Amending Section 1.04.030 of the Lawndale Municipal Code to add the definition of
“Responsible Party”

9



Minutes-City Council Regular Meeting 
June 1, 2020 
Page 2 

Recommendation: that the City Council approve the first reading to introduce Ordinance 
No. 1172-20 to amend Section 1.04.030 to add the definition of “Responsible Party” to 
the Lawndale Municipal Code. 

3. Conflict of Interest Code Notification
Recommendation: that the City Council receive and file the report.

4. Routine Records Destruction
Recommendation: that the City Council adopt Resolution No. CC-2006-029
(Listed as Resolution No. CC-2006-031 in the agenda), approving the requests from City
Manager and City Council for authorization to destroy routine records as listed in exhibits
of the Resolution.

5. Federally Funded Employment and Job Training – South Bay Workforce
Investment Board Activities Summary
Recommendation: that the City Council receive and file the report.

6. Accounts Payable Register
Recommendation: that the City Council adopts Resolution No. CC-2006-026, authorizing
the payment of certain claims and demands in the amount of $641,180.96.

7. Minutes of the Lawndale City Council Regular Meeting – May 18, 2020
Recommendation: that the City Council approve.

A motion by Councilmember Kearney to approve the consent calendar was seconded by 
Councilmember Reid and carried by a vote of 5-0. 

G. PUBLIC HEARING

8. Update to the City of Lawndale’s Building and Safety Fees for Development within
the City, effective from July 1, 2020 to June 30, 2021
Recommendation: that the City Council (a) conduct a public hearing to receive testimony
regarding the City's Building Code Fee Schedule and (b) adopt Resolution No. CC-2006-
027, Update to the City of Lawndale’s Building and Safety Fees for Development within
the City, effective from July 1, 2020 to June 30, 2021

Community Development Director Sean Moore reported on the proposed Update to the City of 
Lawndale’s Building and Safety Fees for Development within the City, effective from July 1, 
2020 to June 30, 2021. 

Mayor Pullen-Miles opened the public hearing at 6:55 p.m. 

The public hearing was opened and closed immediately at 6:55 p.m., there being no one wishing 
to testify. 

A dialogue ensued between Council and staff regarding County fees and City fees. 



Minutes-City Council Regular Meeting 
June 1, 2020 
Page 3 

A motion by Councilmember Kearney to adopt Resolution No. CC-2006-027, Update to the 
City of Lawndale’s Building and Safety Fees for Development within the City, effective 
from July 1, 2020 to June 30, 2021 was seconded by Councilmember Reid and carried by a 
vote of 5-0. 

H. ADMINISTRATION

9. Business Revitalization Subcommittee
Recommendation: that the City Council (a) determine that the proposed action is exempt
from the California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”) pursuant to Section 15378 of
the CEQA Guidelines; and (b) appoint two City Councilmembers to the Business
Revitalization Subcommittee for the develop and implement economic policies and
strategies to assist Lawndale’s business impacted by COVID-19, as well as, to help
stabilize and bolster City revenues.

Community Development Director Sean Moore reported on the Business Revitalization 
Subcommittee. 

Mayor Pullen-Miles suggested the subcommittee apply economic development tools in the 
event of other economic impacts. 

The City Council reached a general consensus to appoint Mayor Pullen-Miles and Mayor 
Pro Tem Suarez to serve on the Business Revitalization Subcommittee. 

10. Consideration of Further Modifications to City Operations Due to the COVID-19
Pandemic
Recommendation: that the City Council (a) cancel the 2020 Summer Day Camp and
Summer Youth Basketball programs; and (b) reaffirm suspension of contract class
programs through the 2020 summer contract class programming season.

Community Services Director Mike Estes reported on the consideration of Further Modifications 
to City Operations Due to the COVID-19 Pandemic. 

A motion by Councilmember Reid to (a) cancel the 2020 Summer Day Camp and 
Summer Youth Basketball programs; and (b) reaffirm suspension of contract class 
programs through the 2020 summer contract class programming season was seconded by 
Councilmember Kearney and carried by a vote of 5-0. 

11. Update on the Use of the Best Western Hotel and Baymont Inn as Temporary
Homeless Shelters through “Project Roomkey”
Recommendation: that the City Council receive and file this report, and provide direction
to staff as appropriate.

Public Comment 

Pam London, Resident, spoke about “Project Roomkey” and inquired about any new hotel 
agreements and commented on new COVID-19 cases in Lawndale. 



Minutes-City Council Regular Meeting 
June 1, 2020 
Page 4 

Municipal Services Director Michael Reyes provided an update on the Use of the Best Western 
Hotel and Baymont Inn as Temporary Homeless Shelters through “Project Roomkey” and 
responded to the Public Comment.  

Councilmember Kearney inquired about a housed individual who escaped and created a 
disturbance. Municipal Services Director Michael Reyes responded the individual was detained 
and arrested by Deputies. 

The City Council reached a general consensus to receive and file the report. 

12. Options for Reinstating Parking Enforcement Related to Street Sweeping
Operations
Recommendation: that the City Council select option 1, 2, or 3 as detailed and stated in
the staff report, related to parking enforcement for street sweeping operations, and/or
provide further direction to staff.

Public Comment 

Randall Abram, Resident, spoke about parking during the “safer at home” order and was 
strongly  opposed to the proposal of reinstating parking enforcement related to street sweeping 
operations.  

Pam London, Resident, disagreed with the recommendation to reinstate parking enforcement 
related to street sweeping operations. 

Municipal Services Director Michael Reyes reported on the Options for Reinstating Parking 
Enforcement Related to Street Sweeping Operations. 

A dialogue ensued between City Council about the options and were opposed to option 1 and 
unanimously agreed with options 2 and 3, as listed in the staff report. 

The City Council reached a general consensus to reinstate parking enforcement related to 
street sweeping operations on major streets in Lawndale as soon as possible and roll out 
full parking enforcement related to street sweeping operations at a later date in July. 

I. CITY MANAGER'S REPORT

City Manager Kevin Chun, spoke about the City’s social media platforms and recommended
residents follow and sign up for updates and information regarding the City.

J. ITEMS FROM CITY COUNCILMEMBERS

13. Mayor/City Councilmembers Report of Attendance at Meetings and/or Events

Councilmember Osborne spoke about the recent civil unrest, wished the present events would 
Pass, and would not repeat or affect the current youth. 

Councilmember Reid attended the Budget Subcommittee. Councilmember Reid went on to 



Minutes-City Council Regular Meeting 
June 1, 2020 
Page 5 

Commend Lawndale Residents for remaining nonviolent during the surrounding civil unrest and 
wanted everyone to stay healthy. 

Councilmember Kearney attended the Budget Subcommittee. 

Mayor Pro Tem Bernadette Suarez attended the South Bay City Council Government Board of 
Directors meeting and wanted everyone to stay safe.  

Mayor Pullen-Miles attended L.A. County Sanitation District Meeting and commended the City 
for remaining peaceful during the most recent events of civil unrest and for their trust in the City 
Council.  

K. CLOSED SESSION

Public Comment

Pam London, Resident, spoke about L.A. County not concerned about the long term effect on
the City because of “Project Roomkey”.

At 7:40 p.m. the City Council entered into closed session.

14. Conference with Legal Counsel – Anticipated Litigation
The City Council will conduct a closed session, pursuant to Government Code section
54956.9(d)(4), because the City is considering whether to initiate litigation in one case
against Best Western Plus South Bay Hotel, Baymont Inn, and the County of Los
Angeles.

At 8:12 p.m. the City Council entered back into open session. 

City Attorney Tiffany Israel reported that the City Council met in Closed Session to discuss 
one item listed on the Closed Session agenda. The City Council was updated on item 
number 14 and there was no reportable action taken.  

L. ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business to conduct, the Mayor adjourned the meeting at 8:13 p.m.

_________________________________ 
Robert Pullen-Miles, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

_________________________________ 
Rhonda Hofmann Gorman, City Clerk 

Approved: 6/15/2020 



Minutes-City Council Regular Meeting 
June 1, 2020 
Page 6 



MINUTES OF THE 
LAWNDALE CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING 

June 1, 2020 

A. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL

Mayor Pullen-Miles called the meeting to order at 4:32 p.m. in the City Hall council chamber, 14717
Burin Avenue, Lawndale, California.

Councilmembers Present: Mayor Robert Pullen-Miles, Mayor Pro Tem Bernadette Suarez,
Councilmember James H. Osborne, Councilmember Pat Kearney,
Councilmember Daniel Reid

Other Participants: City Clerk Rhonda Hofmann Gorman, City Manager Kevin M. 
Chun, City Attorney Tiffany J. Israel, Assistant to the City 
Manager/Human Resources Director Raylette Felton, Municipal 
Services Director Michael Reyes, Community Services Director 
Mike Estes, Community Development Director Sean Moore, and 
Assistant City Clerk Matthew Ceballos. 

B. CEREMONIALS

Councilmember Pat Kearney led the flag salute.

C. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS - ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA

• Andrew Tan, Resident, spoke about the proposed Fiscal Year 2020-2021 Budget and his
concerns.

D. COMMENTS FROM COUNCIL

No comments from Council provided.

E. ADMINISTRATION

1. Fiscal Year 2020-2021 Budget Workshop
Recommendation: that the City Council (a) receive and file the budget presentation; and (b)
review the proposed budget and direct staff as appropriate.

Finance Director Marla Pendleton provided a PowerPoint presentation on the proposed Fiscal 
Year 2020-2021 Budget. A lengthy dialogue ensued between Council and staff regarding the 
Fiscal Year 2020-2021 Budget.  

A. ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business to conduct, the Mayor adjourned the meeting at 5:56 p.m.

10



Minutes - City Council Special Meeting 
June 1, 2020 
Page 2 of 2 

_________________________________ 
Robert Pullen-Miles, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

_________________________________ 
Rhonda Hofmann Gorman, City Clerk 

Approved: 6/15/2020 



MINUTES OF THE 
LAWNDALE CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING 

LAWNDALE CABLE USAGE CORPORATION SPECIAL MEETING 
LAWNDALE HOUSING AUTHORITY SPECIAL MEETING  

REDEVELOPMENT SUCCESSOR AGENCY SPECIAL MEETING 
June 3, 2020 

A. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL

Mayor Pullen-Miles called the meeting to order at 6:08 p.m. in the City Hall council chamber, 14717
Burin Avenue, Lawndale, California.

Councilmembers Present: Mayor Robert Pullen-Miles, Mayor Pro Tem Bernadette Suarez,
Councilmember James H. Osborne, Councilmember Pat Kearney,
Councilmember Daniel Reid

Other Participants: City Clerk Rhonda Hofmann Gorman, City Manager Kevin M. 
Chun, City Attorney Tiffany J. Israel, Assistant to the City 
Manager/Human Resources Director Raylette Felton, Municipal 
Services Director Michael Reyes, Community Services Director 
Mike Estes, Community Development Director Sean Moore, and 
Assistant City Clerk Matthew Ceballos. 

B. CEREMONIALS

Councilmember Daniel Reid led the flag salute.

C. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS - ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA

None.

D. CONSENT CALENDAR

REDEVELOPMENT SUCCESSOR AGENCY

1. Minutes of the Successor Agency Meeting – June 17, 2019
Recommendation: that the Board approves.

LAWNDALE HOUSING AUTHORITY 

2. Minutes of the Housing Authority Regular Meeting – November 4, 2019
Recommendation: that the Commissioners approve.

LAWNDALE CABLE USAGE CORPORATION 

3. Minutes of the Cable Usage Corporation Board of Directors Meeting – June 17,
2019
Recommendation: that the Directors approve.

A motion by Councilmember Kearney to approve the consent calendar was seconded by 
Councilmember Reid and carried by a vote of 5-0. 

11



Minutes - City Council Special Meeting 
June 3, 2020 
Page 2 of 4 

E. ADMINISTRATION

4. Annual Budget for Fiscal Year 2020-21
Recommendation: that the City Council (a) consider and approve items 1 through 14 as
listed in the staff report and incorporated into the proposed budget, and direct staff as
appropriate; and (b) adopt Resolution No. CC-2006-028, approving and adopting the
Citywide Budget for FY 2020-21 as amended based on direction provided by City
Council in relation to items 1 through 14 as listed in the staff report.

Finance Director Marla Pendleton provided a general review of the proposed Annual Budget for 
Fiscal Year 2020-21. 

City Manager Kevin M. Chun added follow-up remarks with respect to the budget process and 
commended Finance Director and the Finance Department. 

A lengthy dialogue ensued between the City Council and Staff regarding adequate weekend 
coverage from Municipal Services Officers. 

Councilmember Kearney recommended to reducing staff uniforms budget to $1,000. Community 
Services Director Mike Estes concurred. 

Councilmember Osborne inquired about potentially having Unarmed Security Service return if the 
budget improves.  City Manager Kevin M. Chun and Community Services Director Mike Estes 
responded that it they would explore the possibility of a new company should funding be available. 

A lengthy dialogue ensued between the City Council and Staff regarding management of parks with 
the Lawndale Elementary School District. A preliminary notice will be prepared. 

The items listed as 1 through 14 were summarized as one motion to approve as follows: 

1. In accordance with Personnel Rule 3.55 and the Memorandum of Understanding between
the City of Lawndale and the respective employee bargaining units, implement an economic
layoff of all part-time employees. Based on operational need, rehire staff to provide essential
functions not to exceed the following annual budgeted amounts: Rec Leader/ Sr Rec Leader,
Rec Leader/ Sr Rec Leader, Transit Operator, and Cable TV Prod. Assistant Staff
Recommendation Approved, Councilmember Kearney opposed the staff recommendation.

2. Reduce the Recreation Program Uniform budget by $1,500 from the $3,000 request due to
workforce reduction (277-510-510.500). Staff Recommendation Amended – budget reduced
by $2000 from the $3000 request ($1000).

3. Reduce full-time staff in the Community Services Department to be in line with service
requirements. Specifically, eliminate the below three authorized positions and funding to
realize cost savings for the full fiscal year:
a. Community Services Supervisor
b. Community Services Coordinator
c. Recreation Coordinator
Staff Recommendation Approved.



Minutes - City Council Special Meeting 
June 3, 2020 
Page 3 of 4 

4. Eliminate all travel and training budgets Citywide leaving funding for only Citywide
mandatory human resources training of $2,000 (100-150-510.610). If funding becomes
available during the fiscal year, consider reinstating funding based on operational needs.
Staff Recommendation Approved.

5. Eliminate School Crossing Guard Services. Estimated costs of $132,405 was removed from
the proposed budget (100-510-530.100). The existing contract with All City Management
Services, Inc. expires on June 12, 2020. Direct staff to inform All City Management Services
that the existing contract will not be renewed in Fiscal Year 2020-21. Staff Recommendation
Approved.

6. Discontinue Unarmed Security Services for the Harold E. Hoffman Community Center, City 
Hall Courtyard, Veteran's Memorial Wall and surrounding parking lots. Section 2.3 of the
agreement between the City of Lawndale and the Alpha and Omega Group Security
Services, Inc. allows the City the option to void or amend the existing agreement to reflect
unanticipated reduction in funding for any reason. Section 7.4 further requires a thirty (30)
day written notice for contract termination. Direct staff to terminate the existing contract
with Alpha and Omega Group Security Services, Inc. effective July 1, 2020. The $26,000
requested funding has been removed from the proposed budget for Fiscal Year 2020-21.
Staff Recommendation Approved.

7. Reduce the requested funding for the Public Works Department Grounds Maintenance (100-
320) to the actual amount expended in Fiscal Year 2018-19. Below are the accounts and
amounts reduced in the proposed budget which results in a savings of $37,500. Staff
Recommendation Approved.

8. Reduce the existing Citywide tree trimming, pruning and tree removal service contract with
South Bay Landscaping, Inc. for Fiscal Year 2020-21 by $80,000 from the current year
contract amount of $166,490. Direct the Interim Public Works Director to review the 2020
Phase II Schedule included in the service contract and perform a risk assessment to identify
specific trees which can be eliminated from the current year schedule without jeopardizing
public safety or altering the aesthetic look of the City. Staff Recommendation Approved.

9. Reduce the budgeted funding for Senior Travel Club support from $21,000 to $10,000. The
reduction has been incorporated into the proposed budget under the Senior Program Fund
278, Contract Services account 530.100. Staff Recommendation Approved.

10. Defer the $43,400 one-time funding budget request for contract services to establish a
transition plan for identifying and establishing a plan for compliance with the 2010
Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) Standards for Accessible Design (100-160-
530.100). Staff Recommendation Approved.

11. Transfer eligible costs from the Community Services Recreation and Senior Activities
budgets to the newly awarded Community Development Block Grant- COVID-19 (CD BG-
CV) grant and establish a $5,000 budget for grant administrative costs (214-440-530.200).
Staff Recommendation Approved.

12. Provide the required one year notice to cancel the Community Recreation Program
Agreements with the Lawndale Elementary School District to renovate, operate and
maintain the three school district parks located at the William Green, Jane Addams and
William Anderson/ Will Rogers schools. Although this action will not provide savings in
Fiscal Year 2020-21, it will provide approximately $130,000 annually in water, electricity,
and grounds maintenance annually after notice is given. In addition, part-time salaries of
$120,000, if approved under recommendation 1, could be saved annually for staffing the
three parks. Staff Recommendation Amended – prior to giving formal notice, attempt to enter



Minutes - City Council Special Meeting 
June 3, 2020 
Page 4 of 4 

into negotiations with school district (suggested deadline to enter into an agreement of July 
1, 2020, notice to be served if no deal reached to give back 1 or more schools). 

13. Consider reducing the Lawndale Beat services from two routes down to one route. The
Lawndale Beat is funded through Proposition A tax revenue, which is earmarked for the
Local Return Program to be used by the City for developing and/or improving local public
transit, paratransit and related transportation infrastructure. Estimated revenue for Fiscal
Year 2020-21 is $698,280 of which $491,180 of appropriations was requested and included
in the proposed budget for contract services to operate the two Lawndale Beat routes. If one
route is eliminated, the funding will need to be reallocated into other authorized program
uses. Direction is requested for this recommendation. Staff Recommendation Approved –
Direction provided to eliminate the “express route” and keep the “residential route”.

14. Increase the Unemployment Insurance Budget from $50,000 to $93,340 (100-160-525.600).
Staff Recommendation Approved.

A motion by Councilmember Osborne to consider and approve items 1 through 14 as listed 
in the staff report, subsequently amended by City Council, and incorporated into the 
proposed budget, and direct staff as appropriate, and adopt Resolution No. CC-2006-028, 
approving and adopting the Citywide Budget for Fiscal Year 2020-21 as amended based on 
direction provided by City Council in relation to items 1 through 14 as listed in the staff 
report, subsequently amended by City Council, was seconded by Councilmember Kearney 
and carried by a vote of 5-0. 

F. ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business to conduct, the Mayor adjourned the meeting at 7:34 p.m.

_________________________________ 
Robert Pullen-Miles, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

_________________________________ 
Rhonda Hofmann Gorman, City Clerk 

Approved: 6/15/2020 



12





ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT: 

The General Plan Annual Progress Report is exempt from the requirements of the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) under the general rule of CEQA Guidelines, Section 15061 (b)(3), 
that there is no possibility that the APR may have a negative physical impact on the environment. 

COMMISSION REVIEW: 

At a public hearing on May 13, 2020, the Planning Commission adopted Resolution No. 20-07 
recommending that the City Council review and adopt the 2019 General Plan Annual Progress Report. 

PUBLIC REVIEW: 

Notices of a public hearing were posted on the bulletin board outside City Hall and published in the 
Daily Breeze on May 18, 2020. 

LEGAL REVIEW 

The City Attorney's office has reviewed and approved Resolution No. CC-2006-035 as to form. 

FISCAL IMP ACT 

Not Applicable 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the City Council review the 2019 draft Annual Report, make any desired 
revisions, and direct staff to forward the report to the State Department of Housing and Community 
Development and the Governor's Office of Planning and Research. 

ATTACHMENTS 

A PC Resolution No. 20-07 
B. CC Resolution No. CC-2006-035
C. General Plan Annual Progress Repmi 2019
D. Annual Housing Element Implementation Progress Repmi 

3 









ATTACHMENTB 

Resolution No. CC-2006-035 

5 



Resolution No. CC-2006-035 
Approving General Plan Annual Progress Report 2019 1 

RESOLUTION NO. CC-2006-035 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF LAWNDALE, CALIFORNIA ACCEPTING 
THE GENERAL PLAN ANNUAL PROGRESS REPORT 2019  
AND APPROVING THE TRANSMITTAL OF THE REPORT 

TO THE GOVERNOR’S OFFICE OF PLANNING AND RESEARCH  
AND THE CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND  

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND FINDING OF EXEMPTION 
FROM CEQA REQUIREMENTS 

 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Lawndale (“City”) has a General Plan, which was adopted in 1999, with 
the Housing Element being subsequently revised in 1997, 2001, 2010 and 2014; and    
 
 WHEREAS, in January 2014, the City adopted a Housing Element covering the period of 2013-
2021, which had been reviewed and approved by the California Department of Housing and Community 
Development (“HCD”); and   
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Cal. Government Code section 65400, the City is required to prepare a 
General Plan Annual Progress Report (APR) for submittal to the City Council, Governor’s Office of 
Planning and Research (OPR), and HCD by April 1st of each year, however due to COVID-19 pandemic, 
the State allowed for additional time for submittal; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the General Plan Annual Progress Report, attached to the staff report for this item 
as Attachment “C”, for calendar year 2019 was considered by the Planning Commission on May 13, 
2020 and on this date, the Planning Commission approved Resolution 20-07 recommending that the City 
Council accept the General Plan Annual Progress Report 2019; and  
 

WHEREAS, evidence was heard and presented from all persons interested in the General Plan 
Annual Progress Report for 2019, and the City Council has reviewed, analyzed and studied the General 
Plan Annual Progress Report for 2019. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LAWNDALE, CALIFORNIA, 
DOES HEREBY RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 SECTION 1. The City Council finds and determines that the recitals above are true and correct 
and incorporated herein by this reference. 
 
 SECTION 2. The City Council hereby accepts the General Plan Annual Progress Report for the 
2019 calendar year and finds that the General Plan Annual Progress Report for calendar year 2019 
appropriately and accurately summarizes the City’s progress during 2019 in implementing the action 
policies in its adopted general plan.   
 
 SECTION 3. The City Council hereby directs City staff to forward the General Plan Annual 
Progress Report 2019 to the Governor’s Office of Planning and Research and the California Department 
of Housing and Community Development Department in accordance with Government Code § 65400.   
 



Resolution No. CC-2006-035 
Approving General Plan Annual Progress Report 2019 2 

 SECTION 4. The City Council finds that the consideration of the General Plan Annual Progress 
Report for 2019 is exempt from the requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”) 
under the general rule of CEQA Guidelines, Section 15061(b)(3), in that there is no possibility that the 
Annual Progress Report may have a significant negative physical impact on the environment. 
  

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 15th day of June, 2020. 
 
 
 
       _______________________________ 
       Robert Pullen-Miles, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
State of California  ) 
County of Los Angeles ) SS 
City of Lawndale  ) 
 
I, Rhonda Hofmann Gorman, City Clerk of the City of Lawndale, California, do hereby certify that the City 
Council of the City of Lawndale duly approved and adopted the foregoing Resolution No. CC-2006-035 at 
a regular meeting of said Council held on the 15th day of June, 2020, by the following roll call vote: 
 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
Aye No Abstain Not Participating 

Robert Pullen-Miles, Mayor      
Bernadette Suarez, Mayor Pro Tem      
James H. Osborne      
Pat Kearney      
Dan Reid      

 
 
_______________________________ 
Rhonda Hofmann Gorman, City Clerk 
 
       APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
       ______________________________ 
       Tiffany J. Israel, City Attorney 



































































13







Resolution No. CC-2006-031 
Calling for an Election, 
November 3, 2020 1 

RESOLUTION NO. CC-2006-031 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LAWNDALE, CALIFORNIA, 
CALLING FOR THE HOLDING OF A GENERALMUNICIPAL ELECTION TO BE HELD 

ON TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 3, 2020, FOR THE ELECTION OF CERTAIN OFFICERS, 
DESIGNATING THE ELECTION OFFICIAL, AND OTHER MATTERS AS  

REQUIRED BY THE PROVISIONS OF THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
RELATING TO GENERAL LAW CITIES 

 
  WHEREAS, under the provisions of the laws relating to general law cities in the State of 
California, a General Municipal Election shall be held on November 3, 2020, for the election of a Mayor 
for the full term of two years; and two members of the City Council of said City for the full term of four 
years; and 
 
  WHEREAS, pursuant to Lawndale Municipal Code Section 2.16.030, the City Council shall 
designate an individual to serve as the City's Election Official in conjunction with the resolution 
necessary to call each election; and 
 
  WHEREAS, pursuant to California Elections Code Section 12303, all political jurisdictions in 
the state are obligated to encourage non-English speaking citizens to vote and to minimize obstacles to 
voting by such citizens and, therefore, must provide minority language assistance when three percent or 
more of voting-age residents of a precinct are non-English speaking citizens; and 
 
  WHEREAS, pursuant to California Elections Code Section 10242, the City Council shall 
establish and determine the hours vote centers will be open. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LAWNDALE, CALIFORNIA, 
DOES RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 SECTION 1. That pursuant to the requirements of the laws of the State of California relating to 
general law cities, there is called and ordered, to be held in the City of Lawndale, California, on Tuesday, 
November 3, 2020, a General Municipal Election of the qualified electors of Lawndale for the purpose 
of electing a Mayor for the full term of two years; and two members of the City Council for the full term 
of four years. 
 
 SECTION 2. That pursuant to Lawndale Municipal Code Section 2.16.030, the Assistant City 
Clerk is hereby designated as the Election Official in and for the City of Lawndale, in connection with 
all proceedings related to the Election called for herein, who shall be responsible for all duties, either 
express or implied, in conjunction with conducting the November 3, 2020 General Municipal Election. 
 
 SECTION 3. That notice of the time and place of holding the Election is given and the Election 
official is authorized, instructed and directed to give further or additional notice of the Election, in time, 
form and manner as required by law. 
 
  



Resolution No. CC-2006-031 
Calling for an Election, 
November 3, 2020 2 

 SECTION 4. That the Elections Official is authorized, instructed and directed to coordinate 
with the County of Los Angeles-Recorder/County Clerk to procure and furnish any and all official 
ballots, notices, printed matter and all supplies, equipment and paraphernalia that may be necessary in 
order to properly and lawfully conduct the Election. That the ballots to be used at the Election shall be 
in form and content as required by law. 
 
 SECTION 4. That the vote centers for the Election shall be open at seven o’clock a.m. of the 
day of the Election and shall remain open continuously from that time until eight o’clock p.m. of the 
same day when the vote centers shall be closed, pursuant to Election Code Section 10242, except as 
provided in Section 14401 of the Elections Code of the State of California. 

 
 SECTION 5. That in all particulars not recited in this resolution, the Election shall be held and 
conducted as provided by law for holding Municipal Elections. 
 
 SECTION 6. That notice of the time and place of holding this Election is hereby given and the 
Assistant City Clerk is authorized, instructed and directed to give such further or additional notice of the 
Election in time, form and manner as required by law. 
 
 SECTION 7.  That in the event of a tie vote (if any two or more persons receive an equal and 
the highest number of votes for an office) as certified by the County of Los Angeles Registrar-
Recorder/County Clerk, the City Council, in accordance with Election Code Section 15651(a), shall set 
a date and time and place and summon the candidates who have received the tie votes to appear and will 
determine the tie by lot or in accordance with Election Code Section 15651(b), shall conduct a Special 
Runoff Election to resolve the tie vote and such Special Runoff Election is to be held on a Tuesday not 
less than 40 days nor more than 125 days after the administrative or judicial certification of the Election 
which resulted in a tie vote. 
 
 SECTION 8. The City Council authorizes the County of Los Angeles Registrar-
Recorder/County Clerk to administer said Election and all reasonable and actual Election expenses shall 
be paid by the City upon presentation of a properly submitted bill. 
 
 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 15th day of June, 2020. 
 
 
 
       _______________________________ 
       Robert Pullen-Miles, Mayor 
 
  



Resolution No. CC-2006-031 
Calling for an Election, 
November 3, 2020 3 

ATTEST: 

State of California ) 
County of Los Angeles ) SS 
City of Lawndale ) 

I, Rhonda Hofmann Gorman, City Clerk of the City of Lawndale, California, do hereby certify that the City 
Council of the City of Lawndale duly approved and adopted the foregoing Resolution No. CC-2006-031 
at a regular meeting of said Council held on the 15th day of June, 2020, by the following roll call vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
Aye No Abstain Not Participating 

Robert Pullen-Miles, Mayor  
Bernadette Suarez, Mayor Pro Tem  
James H. Osborne 
Pat Kearney 
Daniel Reid 

_______________________________ 
Rhonda Hofmann Gorman, City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

______________________________ 
Tiffany J. Israel, City Attorney 



Resolution No. CC-2006-032 
Nov. 3, 2020 General Municipal Election 
Requesting County Election Services 1 

RESOLUTION NO. CC-2006-032 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LAWNDALE 
REQUESTING THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE COUNTY OF LOS 
ANGELES TO ORDER THE CONSOLIDATION OF A GENERAL MUNICIPAL 
ELECTION TO BE HELD ON NOVEMBER 3, 2020 WITH THE STATEWIDE 
GENERAL ELECTION TO BE HELD IN THE COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES 
THE SAME DAY; TO AUTHORIZE THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 
COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES TO CANVASS THE RETURNS OF SAID 
GENERAL MUNICIPAL ELECTION; AND TO REQUEST THAT THE 
REGISTRAR-RECORDER/COUNTY CLERK OF SAID COUNTY BE 
PERMITTED TO RENDER FULL SERVICES TO THE CITY OF LAWNDALE 
RELATING TO THE CONDUCT OF SAID GENERAL MUNICIPAL ELECTION 
PURSUANT TO CALIFORNIA ELECTIONS CODE SECTION 10403 

 
 

WHEREAS, a General Municipal Election has been called by the City of Lawndale to be held in 
the City of Lawndale on November 3, 2020; and, 
 

WHEREAS, a Statewide General Election to be held in the County of Los Angeles has been or 
will be called to be held on November 3, 2020; and, 
 

WHEREAS, it is desired, pursuant to the authority found in California Elections Code section 
10403, that said General Municipal Election be consolidated with said Statewide General Election to be 
held in the County of Los Angeles on the same date. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LAWNDALE DOES 
RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 

 
SECTION 1. The Board of Supervisors of the County of Los Angeles is hereby respectfully 

requested to order the consolidation of said General/Special Municipal Election to be held on November 
3, 2020, with the Statewide General Election to be held in the County of Los Angeles on November 3, 
2020. 
 

SECTION 2. The Board of Supervisors of the County of Los Angeles is hereby further 
respectfully requested to place upon the same ballot as that provided for said Statewide General Election 
to be held in the County of Los Angeles on November 3, 2020, the names of the candidates for the offices 
of  

 
Councilmember, At-Large, Full Term 
Councilmember, At-Large, Full Term       

Mayor, Full Term 
 

to be submitted to the electors of the City of Lawndale at said General Municipal Election. 
 

SECTION 3. The City of Lawndale acknowledges that the consolidated election will be held and 
conducted in the manner prescribed in Section 10418 of the California Elections Code.  



Resolution No. CC-2006-032 
Nov. 3, 2020 General Municipal Election 
Requesting County Election Services 2 

 
SECTION 4. The Board of Supervisors of the County of Los Angeles is hereby authorized and 

respectfully requested to canvass the returns of said General Municipal Election. 
 

SECTION 5. The Board of Supervisors of the County of Los Angeles is hereby authorized and 
respectfully requested to authorize and permit the Registrar-Recorder/County Clerk of the County of 
Los Angeles to: 
 

a) Print and supply ballots for said City of Lawndale General Municipal Election; 
 

b) Mail the City’s sample ballots and candidate statements of qualifications to the electors 
of the City of Lawndale as part of the same material that will be mailed to the voters of 
the Statewide General Election to be held in the County of Los Angeles; 

 
c) Perform such other services as may be required for the consolidation and conduct of said 

City of Lawndale General Municipal Election with said Statewide General Election to be 
held in the County of Los Angeles. 

 
SECTION 6. The vote centers for the election shall be open as required during the identified 

voting period pursuant to California Elections Code sections 4007 and 14401. 
 

SECTION 7. The City shall reimburse the County of Los Angeles in full for the services 
performed on behalf of the City upon the presentation of a bill by the County. 
 

SECTION 8. The City Clerk is hereby directed to deliver a certified copy of this resolution to the 
Board of Supervisors of the County of Los Angeles and to transmit an electronic copy to the Board of 
Supervisors and the Registrar-Recorder/County Clerk of the County of Los Angeles. 
 

 
PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 15th day of June, 2020. 

 
 
 
       _______________________________ 
       Robert Pullen-Miles, Mayor 
 
  



Resolution No. CC-2006-032 
Nov. 3, 2020 General Municipal Election 
Requesting County Election Services 3 

ATTEST: 

State of California ) 
County of Los Angeles ) SS 
City of Lawndale ) 

I, Rhonda Hofmann Gorman, City Clerk of the City of Lawndale, California, do hereby certify that the City 
Council of the City of Lawndale duly approved and adopted the foregoing Resolution No. CC-2006-032 at 
a regular meeting of said Council held on the 15th day of June, 2020, by the following roll call vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
Aye No Abstain Not Participating 

Robert Pullen-Miles, Mayor  
Daniel Reid, Mayor Pro Tem  
James H. Osborne  
Pat Kearney 
Bernadette Suarez 

_______________________________ 
Rhonda Hofmann Gorman, City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

______________________________ 
Tiffany J. Israel, City Attorney 



Resolution No. CC-2006-033 
Candidates Statements 
November 3, 2020 Election 1 

RESOLUTION NO. CC-2006-033 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LAWNDALE, 
CALIFORNIA, ADOPTING REGULATIONS FOR CANDIDATES FOR 

ELECTIVE OFFICE WITH RESPECT TO CANDIDATES STATEMENTS 
SUBMITTED TO THE VOTERS AT AN ELECTION TO BE HELD ON 

TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 3, 2020 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council has called for a General Municipal Election to be held on 
November 3, 2020 for the Election of a Mayor and two members of the City Council; and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to California Elections Code Section 13308, any candidate for elective 
office may prepare a statement of his/her personal background and qualifications which shall be sent to 
each voter in a voter information pamphlet; and 

 
WHEREAS, Section 13307 of the Elections Code of the State of California establishes certain 

regulations pertaining to the preparation and form of candidate statements and authorizes the  City to  
establish certain other regulations pertaining to materials prepared by any candidate for a municipal 
Election, including costs of the candidates’ statement; and 

 
 WHEREAS, the City is authorized to establish the maximum length of candidate statements and 
require each candidate filing a statement to pay in advance his or her pro rata share of the printing, 
handling, translating and mailing costs of including the candidate's statement in the voter pamphlet; and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to the federal Voting Rights Act, all political subdivisions within the 
County of Los Angeles, California are required to provide translations of voting materials if more than 
five percent of the citizens of voting age are members of a single language minority and are limited-
English proficient, which minority languages include Spanish, Vietnamese, Chinese, Japanese, Korean, 
Tagalog/Filipino, Thai, Hindi and Khmer/Cambodian. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LAWNDALE, CALIFORNIA, 
DOES HEREBY RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 

 
SECTION 1. General Provisions.  That pursuant to Section 13307 of the Elections Code of the 

State of California, each candidate for elective office to be voted for at an Election to be held in the City 
of Lawndale on November 3, 2020 may prepare a candidate’s statement on an appropriate form provided 
by the Election Official. The statement may include the name, age and occupation of the candidate and 
a brief description of no more than 200 words of the candidate’s education and qualifications expressed 
by the candidate himself or herself.  The statement shall not include party affiliation of the candidate, 
nor membership or activity in partisan political organizations.  The statement shall be filed in typewritten 
form in the office of the City Clerk at the time the candidate’s nomination papers are filed.  The statement 
may be withdrawn, but not changed, during the period for filing nomination papers and until 5:00 p.m. 
of the next working day after the close of the nomination period. 
  



Resolution No. CC-2006-033 
Candidates Statements 
November 3, 2020 Election 2 

 SECTION 2. Foreign Language Policy. 
A. Pursuant to the Federal Voting Rights Act, the County is required to translate candidates' 

statements into the 12 qualified languages.  The multilingual targeted languages for the 
City are: Spanish, Korean and Vietnamese. 

B. Pursuant to state law, the County will:  
1.  Have all candidates' statements translated into Spanish, Vietnamese, and Korean; and 
2. Have additional translations prepared as requested by the candidate pursuant to Section 
2(B) above; and 
3.  Cause the voter information pamphlet, including all candidates' statements, to be 
printed in English and Spanish; and 
4.  Cause additional translations requested and paid for by the candidate to be printed in 
the voter information pamphlet; and 
5.  Have all translations prepared by professionally certified translators meeting the 
requirements in California Elections Code Section 13307; and 

 C. The County will: 
  1. Mail separate Voter Information Guide including sample ballots and translated 

candidates statements in Korean and Vietnamese to only those voters who are on the 
county voter file as having requested a sample ballot in a particular language.  
2.  Make the Voter Information Guide, including sample ballots and candidates statements, 
in the City’s required languages available on the County’s website and at all polling places, 
on the County’s website, and in the Election Official’s office 

 
SECTION 3. Payment. 

A.  Translations:  The candidate shall be required to pay for the cost of all translations of 
the candidate’s statement. 

B.  Printing:  The candidate shall be required to pay for the cost of printing the candidate’s 
statement in the main voter pamphlet. 

C.  The City’s Election Official shall estimate the total cost of printing, handling, 
translating, and mailing the candidates’ statements filed pursuant to this section, 
including costs incurred as a result of complying with the Voting Rights Act of 1965 
(as amended), and require each candidate filing a statement to pay in advance to the 
City his or her estimated pro rata share as a condition of having his or her statement 
included in the voter’s pamphlet. The estimate is just an approximation of the actual 
cost that varies from one Election to another Election and may be significantly more 
or less than the estimate, depending on the actual number of candidates filing 
statements. Accordingly, the Election Official is not bound by the estimate and will, 
on a pro rata basis, bill the candidate for additional actual expense or refund any excess 
paid depending on the final, actual cost.  In the event of underpayment, the clerk may 
require the candidate to pay the balance of the cost incurred.  In the event of 
overpayment, the clerk shall prorate the excess amount among the candidates and 
refund the excess amount paid within 30 days of the Election. 

 
 SECTION 4. The Voter Information Pamphlet, Additional Regulations. 

A. The Election Official shall ensure that all candidates' statements printed in the voter 
information pamphlet are printed in type of uniform size and darkness, and with 
uniform spacing, and specifically shall not allow bold type, underlining and 
capitalization of full words. In addition, no statement shall not include any emphasis in 



Resolution No. CC-2006-033 
Candidates Statements 
November 3, 2020 Election 3 

the body of the text including, but not limited to, numbered lists, asterisks, bullets, any 
leading hyphens, etc. 

B. The Election Official shall comply with all recommendations and standards set forth by
the California Secretary of State regarding candidate occupational designations and
other matters relating to Elections.

C. No candidate will be permitted to include additional materials in the voter information
pamphlet.

SECTION 5. The Elections Official shall provide each candidate or the candidate’s 
representative with a copy of this resolution at the time nominating petitions are issued. 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 15th day of June, 2020 

_______________________________ 
Robert Pullen-Miles, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

State of California ) 
County of Los Angeles ) SS 
City of Lawndale ) 

I, Rhonda Hofmann Gorman, City Clerk of the City of Lawndale, California, do hereby certify that the City 
Council of the City of Lawndale duly approved and adopted the foregoing Resolution No. CC-2006-033 at 
a regular meeting of said Council held on the 15th day of June, 2020, by the following roll call vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
Aye No Abstain Not Participating 

Robert Pullen-Miles, Mayor 
Bernadette Suarez, Mayor Pro Tem 
James H. Osborne 
Pat Kearney 
Daniel Reid 

_______________________________ 
Rhonda Hofmann Gorman, City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

______________________________ 
Tiffany J. Israel, City Attorney 



14





15





16



17



18


	20-06-15 reg.agn
	01. Reading of Ord.
	02. Include Responsible Party Definition
	03. First Amendment to Telecom Law Firm
	04. Approval of Final Parcel Map No. 82571
	05. Gann Limit Adoption of FY 2020-21 Appropriations Limit
	06. Annual Investment Policy
	07. Information Technology Services Agreement Extension-Bericom Des Staff Report
	08. Warrants
	09. 20-06-01 reg.min
	10. 20-06-01 sp.min
	11. 20-06-03 sp.min
	12. General Plan Annual Progress Report 2019
	13. November 3, 2020 GME
	CC-2006-033 Candidates' Statements Nov 2020.pdf
	B.  Printing:  The candidate shall be required to pay for the cost of printing the candidate’s statement in the main voter pamphlet.


	14. Project Roomkey Update
	15. Modification to Recreation Programming due to COVID-19
	16. Councilmembers Report of Attendance
	17. CS - Lit
	18. CS - Eval

	Button1: 


